
Council Meeting
Agenda

18 May 2015



1

SUMMONS
To All Members of the Council

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the District Council to be held in the 
COUNCIL CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT, LYNDHURST on Monday, 18 May 2015, at 
6.30 pm

Dave Yates
Chief Executive

Appletree Court, Lyndhurst, Hampshire. SO43 7PA
www.newforest.gov.uk

This Agenda is also available on audio tape, in Braille, large print and digital format

AGENDA

Apologies

1.  ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN 
To elect a Chairman of the Council to hold office until the annual meeting in 2016.

Cllr Mrs Hoare has been nominated as Chairman for the ensuing year.

Declaration of acceptance of office by the Chairman and investiture of 
badges of office

The newly elected Chairman in the Chair.

Vote of thanks to Cllr Mrs Holding and presentation of badges.



2

2.  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 
To appoint a Vice-Chairman of the Council to hold office until the annual meeting in 
2016.

Cllr G C Beck has been nominated as Vice-Chairman for the ensuing year.

Declaration of acceptance of office by the Vice-Chairman and investiture of 
badges of office.

3.  APPOINTMENT OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL 
To appoint a Leader of the Council for the four year period until May 2019.

4.  MINUTES (PAPER A) (Pages 1 - 8)

To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 13 April 2015 as a correct record.

5.  CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

6.  LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

7.  APPOINTMENT OF DEPUTY LEADER, NUMBER AND CONTENT OF 
PORTFOLIOS AND APPOINTMENT OF PORTFOLIO HOLDERS 
The Leader of the Council will inform the Council of: 

(a) the name of the councillor he has appointed Deputy Leader of the Council;
(b) the number and content of the Portfolios;
(c) the name of the councillor he has appointed to each Portfolio; and

RECOMMENDED:

That the Head of Legal and Democratic Services be authorised to make any 
consequential changes to the Constitution arising from the above.

8.  REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER (REPORT B) (Pages 9 - 24)

To receive the report of the Returning Officer on the elections held on Thursday 7 
May 2015.

9.  POLITICAL REPRESENTATION ON COMMITTEES 
In accordance with Section 15(1)(b) of the Local Government and Housing Act 
1989, the Council must review the representation of political groups on committees 
at the annual meeting each year or as soon as practicable thereafter.  For this 
purpose, “committees” includes the Council’s Overview & Scrutiny Panels but 
excludes the Cabinet.  



3

The Act prescribes, amongst other things, that –

(a) the majority of seats on committees must be allocated to the majority 
political group;  and

(b) subject to (a) above, the number of seats on committees allocated to each 
political group must bear the same proportion as the total of the membership 
of that group to the membership of the authority.

These provisions need not be applied if a different position is agreed without any 
member of the authority voting against.

Following the ordinary election of Councillors on 7 May 2015, the political 
proportionality on the Council is:

Conservative:    58
Liberal Democrat:   2

There are 101 Committee/Panel places to which appointments should be made 
under the principles of proportionality. Of these, 98 should be allocated to the 
Conservative Group and 3 to the Liberal Democrat Group.

Recommendations for the appointment of members to Committees and Panels to 
comply with the principles of proportionality will be circulated later for consideration 
under item 10 of this agenda.

RECOMMENDED:

That appointments be made to committees and panels in accordance with the 
principles for the allocation of seats to political parties as set out in Section 
15 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989, except in those cases 
where it is decided, without any member voting against, not to apply the 
principles of proportionality.

10.  APPOINTMENT OF COMMITTEES AND PANELS (REPORT C) (TO FOLLOW) 
To appoint members to the Committees and Panels set out in Report C, as 
proposed by the political groups, for the four year period commencing 18 May 2015.

11.  ANY OTHER ITEMS WHICH THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT 



1

13 APRIL 2015

NEW FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the New Forest District Council held in COUNCIL 
CHAMBER, APPLETREE COURT, LYNDHURST on Monday, 13 April 2015

* Cllr Mrs M D Holding (Chairman)
* Cllr Mrs A Hoare (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors: Councillors:

* A R Alvey
* Mrs D E Andrews
* G C Beck
 Mrs S V Beeton
* Ms R Bellows
 Mrs S Bennison
* J E Binns
* D A Britton
* Mrs D M Brooks
* S Clarke
* Mrs J L Cleary
* G F Dart
* S P Davies
* W H Dow
* Ms L C Ford
* R L Frampton
* A T Glass
* M R Harris
* D Harrison
* C J Harrison
 J D Heron
* E J Heron
* Mrs P Jackman
* M J Kendal
* A N G Kilgour
* C Lagdon
 Mrs M E Lewis
* Mrs P J Lovelace
* Lucas

* Mrs A E McEvoy
* Mrs M McLean
* O'Sullivan
* N Penman
* J Penwarden
* L R Puttock
* A W Rice
* B Rickman
* W S Rippon-Swaine
 Mrs M J Robinson
* Mrs A M Rostand
* D J Russell
* R F Scrivens
* Miss A Sevier
* M D Southgate
* A J Swain
 M H Thierry
* A R Tinsley
* D B Tipp
* F P Vickers
* M S Wade
* S S Wade
* R A Wappet
* J G Ward
* Mrs C V Ward
* C A Wise
* Mrs B M Woodifield
* P R Woods
* Mrs P A Wyeth

*Present

Officers Attending:

D Yates, R Jackson, J Mascall, Miss G O’Rourke and Ms M Stephens.

56. MINUTES 

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 23 February 2015 be signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.

A

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

2

57. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Cllrs Lagdon and M S Wade in item 1 of the Report of General Purposes & 
Licensing Committee dated 6 March 2015.

58. CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Chairman’s Activities since last Council meeting

Since the last Council meeting the Chairman had attended many functions 
throughout the New Forest, Hampshire, Dorset & Surrey, including: -

 The Mayor of Bournemouth’s Charity fashion show at the Highcliffe 
Marriott Hotel raising money for his charities. 

 The opening of the Malt Cinema at the Lymington Community Centre. 
 The VIP launch of Cambium at Careys Manor Hotel, Brockenhurst.
 Welcoming delegates to the New Forest Network Advice meeting at 

Appletree Court. 
 A private dinner party for local networking with companies from the 

Bournemouth area, in the Mayor of Bournemouth’s parlour.
 A concert in the Great Hall, Winchester on WW1 hosted by the 

Chairman of Hampshire County Council. 
 The raising of the Commonwealth Flag on Commonwealth Day at 

Appletree Court. 
 A rehearsal of the Bournemouth Symphony Orchestra at the Lighthouse 

and a tour of the RNLS College. 
 Civic days with the Mayors of Eastleigh, Havant and Hart.
 A private dinner party with the Mayor of Fareham in his parlour with his 

local business representatives. 
 The Mayor of Christchurch charity gala dinner at the Captain’s Club, 

Christchurch and the Mayor of New Milton’s charity ball held at 
Shorefield Holiday Park. 

 Representing the New Forest at the Hampshire and IOW Sport Awards 
Ceremony at Southampton Football Club. 

 Representing the New Forest District at the New Forest Choirs and the 
New Forest Chamber Choir at the Regent Centre, Christchurch. 

 The Mayor of Fareham’s charity ball at the Ferneham Hall and also the 
Mayor of Eastleigh’s charity ball at the Botley Park Hotel, Hedge End. 

 The Mayor of Havant’s charity spring dinner at the South Downs College 
restaurant. 

 An Easter afternoon tea party in aid of charity with the Mayor of 
Rushmoor in the Council offices, Farnham. 

 The Forest Connexions Exhibition preview at the New Forest Centre 
Lyndhurst and the Dudley Keep Lecture on Galipoli at the Great Hall, 
Winchester. 

 A reception in the Mayor of Southampton’s parlour and afterwards at 
Showtime Production in the O2 at the Guildhall by Southampton and 
West Hampshire Brownies and Guides.

 The opening day at the Lodge, Ashley, New Milton.
 The Mayor of Bournemouth’s charity ball in the Pavilion ballroom. 

Page 2



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

3

Departing Councillors 

Earlier that day the Chairman had held a reception for outgoing councillors who 
were retiring at the forthcoming election. The Chairman thanked these councillors 
for the years of service given to the New Forest and wished them happiness in the 
future. 

Members paid tribute to departing Councillors and thanked them for their hard work 
and diligence during their terms of office. 

Death of former Councillor Mrs Barbara Maynard

The Chairman reported the death of former Cllr Mrs Barbara Maynard, who served 
on the Council for the Blackfield and Langley Ward between 1995 and 2003 and 
then the Fawley, Blackfield and Langley Ward between 2003 and 2007.    During 
her terms, she served on what were then the Central Services, Emergencies and 
Housing Committees along with the Planning Development Control and Appeals 
Committees. She would be sadly missed. 

Charity Fundraising Events

On Friday 13 March the Chairman hosted reception and charity dinner at the 
Balmer Lawn Hotel, Brockenhurst.  A total of £1687 was raised for the Chairman’s 
charities.  The speaker, Peter Henley of BBC South Today and the Politics 
Programme gave a great speech.  The Chairman thanked Donna Langfield and the 
owners and staff of the Balmer Lawn Hotel for their help with the event.
 
On Thursday 19 March the Chairman hosted a lifestyle fashion evening at Elliotts, 
Lymington organised by the owner Neil Welker and his staff.  The evening had 
been a great success and raised £2734 for the Chairman’s charities.
 
On Monday 30 March, Amanda and Alan Poulton at The Red Lion in Boldre held a 
quiz and curry evening in aid of the Chairman’s charities. A profit of £523 was 
raised.  On Easter Friday a draw was held for a charity basket and raised a further 
£265.  The Chairman thanked all those who helped with these events. 
 
The Chairman thanked Anthony Climpson, Carol Seymour and members of the 
New Forest Tourism and Business Association who donated generously to The 
Nalder Foundation and the Hampshire and Isle of Wight Air Ambulance with raffle 
prizes. 
 
The Chairman announced that many bags had been donated by staff and 
councillors for Oakhaven Hospice, the goods would be sold in their shops. She 
thanked all who donated. 
 
The Chairman thanked all who helped with her recent charity events.

59. LEADER'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

There were none. 

60. REPORTS OF COMMITTEES AND CABINET 

Report of General Purposes & Licensing

Page 3



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

4

Cllr M S Wade disclosed a pecuniary interest in this item as his wife worked for the 
Authority. He did not speak and abstained from voting. Cllr Lagdon disclosed a 
non-pecuniary interest in this item as a family member worked for the Authority. He 
did not speak and abstained from voting.

Cllr Beck, Chairman of the Committee, presented the report of the meeting held on 
6 March 2015.

On the motion that the report be received and the recommendation be adopted, it 
was 

RESOLVED: 

That the recommendation be adopted.

Reports of Cabinet  

The Leader of the Council, as Chairman of the Cabinet, presented the reports of the 
meetings held on 4 March and 1 April 2015. 

On the motion that the reports be received, it was:

RESOLVED: 

That the reports be received and the recommendations be adopted.

61. REPORT OF OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANELS 2014/15 

The Council considered the report of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels for 
2014/15.  

The Chairmen of the Overview & Scrutiny Panels thanked Councillors, 
Heads of Service, Officers and external partners for their contributions to the 
scrutiny process. Particular thanks were given to members who had served 
on Task & Finish Groups throughout the year. 

RESOLVED:

That the report be received and noted.

62. QUESTIONS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22 

There were none. 

63. QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS UNDER STANDING ORDER 22A 

Question 1:
From:  Cllr Lagdon
To:  Cllr Vickers, Planning & Transportation Portfolio Holder

“Concerning the 'National Planning Policy Framework issued March 2012 by the 
Conservative and Liberal Democrat Coalition Government, can the Portfolio Holder 
please tell us how this council proposes to: "BOOST SIGNIFICANTLY the supply of 

Page 4



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

5

housing within the New Forest District Council area" when at present, certainly in 
the east of the Forest, we are stretching the infrastructure to breaking point and 
have very little room to build anyway?”

Answer: 

The Portfolio Holder replied that NFDC was one of only a small number of Planning 
Authority Councils that had a fully adopted Local Plan. Neighbouring councils 
without a plan such as Test Valley, Eastleigh and East Hants where seeing 
Planning Inspectors grant large developments. NFDC’s Plan started in 2006. To 
date, 57% of the 20 year housing commitment has already been built. The Council 
also has an 8 year land supply available for development based on current 
numbers. The current plan required updating. The process for doing so would take 
at least 2 years before Public Examination. Consequently, there would not be a 
significant change in the house building rate in the time of the next Council.  In 
response to a supplementary question regarding how many new houses were 
needed to be built per year in the District and the impact on the existing 
infrastructure, the Portfolio Holder explained that in the NFDC area, every possible 
building site was within 5 kilometres of an Special Protection Area (SpA) or Special 
Area of Conservation (SAC) and consequently the Council was required to provide 
Sites of Alternative Natural Green Space (SANGs). This was a major issue with the 
existing plan. A direct result of this was that it diminished ability to build houses. A 
further factor related to the poor transport infrastructure in large parts of the District. 
All of these factors would influence the proposals put into the revision of the Plan. It 
was also open to a town like Totton to produce its own Neighbourhood Plan and 
thereby decide how much housing would be built and where.

Question 2:
From:  Cllr M S Wade
To:  Cllr Cleary, Housing and Communities Portfolio Holder

“Is the Life Line activity in the CCTV control room in anyway affecting the 
appropriate level of community safety monitoring of the CCTV cameras in the New 
Forest towns and villages?”

Answer: 

The Portfolio Holder said that the number of incidents monitored by cameras in the 
control room remained steady at just over 2,000 incidents per year. Whilst activity in 
the control room had increased due to community alarms, so had staffing.  Prior to 
the changes in the service, there were 7 employees in CCTV covering 20 hours per 
day. There were now 15 employees in the unit covering 24 hours a day.  The old 
control room was often singled crewed. Now, for many hours of the day, there were 
3 or 4 employees present at a time. Calls from Community Alarms had peak times 
and during those hours they were the priority due to the vulnerability of the clients, 
however the Council would continue to respond to Police Control and Shop Watch 
whilst still carrying out regular camera scans.  There was no evidence to suggest 
that CCTV monitoring had been adversely impacted by these changes.  In 
response to a supplementary question regarding the removal of cameras in Totton 
and Hythe Towns, the Portfolio Holder said that she would investigate this matter 
further. 

Page 5



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

6

Question 3:
From:  Cllr D Harrison
To:  Cllr Cleary, Housing and Communities Portfolio Holder

“Could you please outline your priority actions for ensuring the future of community 
safety in our New Forest towns & villages”

Answer: 

The Portfolio Holder replied that the New Forest remained a low crime area and the 
Crime and Disorder Reduction partnership “Safer New Forest” continued to work 
with partners to ensure that remained.  The current priorities of the Partnership 
included: the reduction of antisocial behaviour, the reduction of domestic violence 
and re-offending.  The Portfolio Holder had been pleased to see that the Crime 
Commissioner had commissioned an Independent Domestic Violence Advocate 
which residents within the Forest would have access to.  To ensure that the 
Council’s priorities remained current, the Partnership would work on a refresh of the 
Community Safety Strategic Assessment which the Council was lawfully obliged to 
produce. This would be available in June. From that document the Council would 
develop a multi-agency partnership plan to deliver on the identified priorities. 

The Portfolio Holder had instigated a review of the Joint Action Group. This was to 
consider whether any changes were needed, to ensure it remained fit for the future.  
The reduction in Police numbers in the area had caused debate in the press, but 
the Area Commander had been clear that he could deliver an appropriate Policing 
response within available resources. The Council would continue to work with him 
on any emerging issues. In response to a supplementary question regarding the 
retention of CCTV cameras in towns, the Portfolio Holder said that town councils 
would need to continue to financially contribute to this service provision. She would 
have further discussions with town councils to determine their current position on 
this matter.

Question 4:
From:  Cllr D Harrison
To:  The Leader of the Council

“I noted the squirming discomfort of several Conservative Councillors at the budget 
setting meeting when you praised the Council’s workforce but failed to commit to 
paying them a living wage. How soon before you seek to rectify this?”

Answer: 

The Leader of the Council replied that the new administration would consider all 
priorities following the May elections. Over the past four years the administration 
had delivered priorities whilst responsibly managing the Council’s business with 
less financial resource. This would continue. Support and encouragement would 
continue to be given to staff. One of the high priority projects within the Fit for the 
Future programme was pay and reward. The living wage would be a key 
consideration for this particular programme. Proposals were likely to be made to the 
Pay Panel at the start of 2016.

Page 6



CNL 13 APRIL 2015

7

Question 5:
From:  Cllr D Harrison
To:  The Leader of the Council

“In the unlikely event that the Conservatives hang on to enough seats to keep 
control of the Council after the elections, will you undertake to consider moving 
back to a committee system of governance rather than the unpopular system of rule 
by Cabinet?”

Answer: 

The Leader of the Council said that should the new Council wish to consider new 
ways of working, a Task & Finish Group would be established. For the time being, 
the current method of governance would remain.

64. NOMINATIONS FOR APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN AND VICE-CHAIRMAN OF 
THE COUNCIL 

RESOLVED: 

That Cllr Mrs A J Hoare be nominated as Chairman and Cllr G C Beck as 
Vice-Chairman of the Council for the following Municipal year.

65. MEMBERSHIP OF COMMITTEES AND PANELS 

No changes to committees or panels were proposed by the political groups.

Chairman

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



ANNUAL COUNCIL MEETING – 18 MAY 2015

ELECTIONS 7 MAY 2015 – REPORT OF THE RETURNING OFFICER

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 The quadrennial elections for members of the District Council and Parish and Town 
Councils in New Forest District took place on 7 May 2015.  The elections were combined 
with the elections for members of Parliament for the New Forest East and New Forest 
West Parliamentary Constituencies.

1.2 Notices of election for the 60 seats on the District Council and the 350 seats on the 
Parish and Town Councils were published on 27 March 2015.  The number of 
candidates validly nominated were:

District Council  -  156
Parish/Town Councils  - 396

1.3 At the elections in May 2011, there were 147 candidates for District Council seats and 
374 for Parish/Town Councils.

2. POLLS – 7 MAY 2015

2.1 There were contests in 32 of the 34 District Wards and in 12 parishes/towns with a total 
29 parish/town ward contests. Two candidates, were elected unopposed to the District 
Council, namely, Cllr William Dow in the Forest North West Ward and Cllr Emma Lane in 
the Ringwood East & Sopley Ward.   198 Parish/Town candidates were elected 
unopposed.  There were elections in the following parishes/towns:

Ashurst & Colbury Parish Council
Bransgore Parish Council
Copythorne (Copythorne North Ward) 
Hythe & Dibden (Butts Ash Ward; Dibden Ward; Dibden Purlieu Ward;  Hythe East 
Ward; Furzedown Ward; Hythe West Ward;  Langdown Ward)
Fawley Parish Council (Blackfield & Langley Ward; Hardley Ward; Holbury Ward)
Lymington & Pennington Town Council (Buckland Ward; Lymington Town Ward; 
Pennington Ward)
Netley Marsh (Netley Marsh North Ward)
New Milton (Barton Ward; Bashley Ward; Fernhill Ward; Milton Ward)
Ringwood (Ringwood South Ward)
Sway Parish Council
Totton & Eling Town Council (Totton Central Ward; Totton East Ward; Totton North 
Ward; Totton South Ward; Totton West Ward)
Whitsbury Parish Council

2.2 Polling took place at 104 polling stations across the District.   Postal ballot papers were 
issued to 20,521 electors, with 14,050 postal papers being included in the count.   1.9% 
of the postal votes returned were rejected on opening because of incorrectly completed, 
or no, postal voting statements, signatures and dates of birth not matching, no ballot 
papers, or other irregularities.  These postal votes were not included in the count.  1.32% 

1

B

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



of all ballot papers included in the count were rejected,  This is higher than the figure of 
1% in 2011.

2.3 Verification of the Parliamentary, District and Parish elections took place at two sites – 
Applemore Health & Leisure and New Milton Health & Leisure – on the night of 7 May.  
The verification was followed by the count of the Parliamentary votes.   The count of the 
District & Parish votes was held on Friday 8 May at Applemore Health & Leisure.

3. PARLIAMENTARY ELECTION RESULTS

3.1 The following were elected:

New Forest East Julian Murray Lewis
New Forest West Desmond Angus Swayne

The turnouts were:

New Forest East: 68.27%
New Forest West 69.54%

4. DISTRICT COUNCIL  ELECTION RESULTS

4.1 The results are shown in Appendix 1.

4.2 The overall percentage poll for the District Council elections was 68.15%  This is higher 
than the 44.93% at the 2011 elections, when the elections were combined with the 
referendum on changes to the voting system at Parliamentary elections.

5. PARISH COUNCIL ELECTION RESULTS

5.1 All Parish/Town Council election results are on the District Council’s website at:
http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16210/Elections-2015---Results 

5.2 The overall percentage poll for the Parish Council elections was 66.14%.   

5.3 Where insufficient nominations were received to fill all the vacant seats, the Parish or 
Town Council may within 35 days of the election, co-opt members to fill the vacancies.   
Any person co-opted must meet the normal qualification rules for membership of a 
Parish or Town Council.  If co-option is not undertaken within 35 days the District 
Council may appoint persons to serve on the parish/town council, or may order further 
elections to be held to fill the vacancies.

2Page 10

http://www.newforest.gov.uk/article/16210/Elections-2015---Results


6. RECOMMENDED:

6.1 That the report of the Returning Officer be noted.

For further information please contact: Background Papers:

Dave Yates Published documents
Returning Officer
Tel:  (023) 8028 5588
E-mail:  dave.yates@nfdc.gov.uk

or

Rosemary Rutins
Democratic Services Manager
Tel:  (023) 8028 5588
E-mail:  rosemary.rutins@nfdc.gov.uk

3Page 11

mailto:dave.yates@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:dave.yates@nfdc.gov.uk
mailto:rosemary.rutins@nfdc.gov.uk


APPENDIX 1

District Council Election Results - 7 May 2015

ASHURST, COPYTHORNE SOUTH & NETLEY MARSH WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
DAY
Peter Anthony

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 840

KERSHAW
Kenneth John

Labour Party 594

PUTTOCK
Leslie Raymond

The Conservative Party Candidate 1992 ELECTED

SOPOWSKI
Peter William Joseph

Labour Party 506

TIPP
Derek Brian

The Conservative Party Candidate 1689 ELECTED

Turnout:  73.40%

BARTON WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BECK
Goff

Conservative Party Candidate 1959       ELECTED

O`SULLIVAN
Alan Dennis

Conservative Party Candidate 1946 ELECTED

TERRY
Peter Simon

Labour Party 558

VASILESCO
Ann

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 986

Turnout: 71.6%

BASHLEY WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BAILEY
Gwen

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 323

PHILLIPS
Martin

Labour Party 200

TUNGATE
Neil

Conservative Party Candidate 1070 ELECTED

Turnout: 71.8%

BECTON WARD (2 seats)
4Page 12



Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BAILEY
Paul Hamilton

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 761

BLUNDEN
Geoffrey

Conservative Party Candidate 1290  ELECTED

DAVIES
Wyn

Liberal Democrats 561

WARD
Christine Vivienne

Conservative Party Candidate 1350  ELECTED

Turnout: 65.9%

BOLDRE & SWAY WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
GREENWOOD
Tom

Green Party 973

RICKMAN
Barry

The Conservative Party Candidate 2352 ELECTED

WISE
Colin Arthur

The Conservative Party Candidate 1629     ELECTED

Turnout: 72.60%

BRAMSHAW, COPYTHORNE NORTH & MINSTEAD WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
ANDREWS
Diane Elizabeth

The Conservative Party Candidate 1222  ELECTED

GRAY
Tony

The Green Party 359

Turnout: 74.25%

BRANSGORE & BURLEY WARD  (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CURWAIN
Brian Peter

Labour Party 464

FRAMPTON
Richard Leslie

Conservative Party Candidate 2386 ELECTED

STEELE
Mark Anthony

Conservative Party Candidate 1805 ELECTED

THURSTON
Colin

The Green Party 740

Turnout: 73.6%
BROCKENHURST & FOREST SOUTH EAST WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast

5Page 13



BEAUMONT
John Robert

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 682

HARRIS
Michael Ross

The Conservative Party Candidate 1964 ELECTED

HOLDING
Maureen Doris

The Conservative Party Candidate 1934 ELECTED

MELLOR
Henry

Green Party Candidate 801

MURTON
Bramley James

Labour Party 498

Turnout: 71.55%

BUCKLAND WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
JEARRAD
Ted

304

OLLIFF-COOPER
John Mark

Conservative Party Candidate 812 ELECTED

TENNANT
Bernard

Labour Party 244

VINCENT
Brenda

Liberal Democrats 231

Turnout: 58.99%

BUTTS ASH & DIBDEN PURLIEU WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
ARMSTRONG
Peter James

The Conservative Party Candidate 1398 ELECTED

BINNS
James Edward

The Conservative Party Candidate 1426 ELECTED

DALE
David Leonard

Labour Party  374

MONAGHAN
Lorraine

Liberal Democrats 945

ROGERS
Peter Charles Victor

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 515

TRIBE
Chris

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 412

WADE
Malcolm

Liberal Democrat 1175

Turnout: 69.31%

6Page 14



DIBDEN & HYTHE EAST WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
ANDREWS
Bill

The Conservative Party Candidate 1151 ELECTED

CAPLEN
Edward Martyn Glen David

The Green Party 361

HARRISON
Chris

Liberal Democrats 1058

POOLE
Dan

The Conservative Party Candidate 1274 ELECTED

WADE
Stan

Liberal Democrats 942

WILSON
Phil

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 658

Turnout: 68.38%

DOWNLANDS & FOREST WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
HERON
Edward John

Conservative Party Candidate 1436 ELECTED

TOYNTON
Paul Edward

Labour Party   394

Turnout: 76.7%

FAWLEY, BLACKFIELD & LANGLEY WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
GULLIVER
Gill

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 1118

MCDERMOTT
Lin

Liberal Democrat 334

MCEVOY
Alexis Ellen

The Conservative Party Candidate 1551 ELECTED

WAPPET
Bob

The Conservative Party Candidate 1402 ELECTED

WEST
Ronan

Liberal Democrat 519

WILLIAMS
Paul

Labour Party 452

Turnout: 70.54%

7Page 15



FERNHILL WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CLEARY
Jill Lauran

The Conservative Party Candidate 1533 ELECTED

SHORT
Stephen Paul

Labour Party 634

WARD
John George

The Conservative Party Candidate 1384 ELECTED

WILKINS
Marlene

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 933

Turnout: 62.8%

FORDINGBRIDGE WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BELLOWS
Roxy

Conservative Party Candidate 1997 ELECTED

CAKEBREAD
David Rhys

Labour Party 826

RASEY
Sid

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 636

RASEY
Wendy

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 541

SEVIER
Ann

Conservative Party Candidate 1917 ELECTED

WARD
Jane

Trade Unionists And Socialist 
Coalition

294

Turnout: 70.4%

FOREST NORTH WEST WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any)
Dow, Bill Conservative Party Candidate Uncontested  - Elected 

FURZEDOWN & HARDLEY WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CLARK
Mark

Liberal Democrat   569

8Page 16



CRISELL
Kate

The Conservative Party Candidate 617 ELECTED

THOMAS
Paul Wayne

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 479

Turnout: 62.04%

HOLBURY & NORTH BLACKFIELD WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
ALVEY
Alan Rutherford

The Conservative Party Candidate 1152 ELECTED

GLASS
Allan Thomas

The Conservative Party Candidate 1204 ELECTED

PEARCE-SMITH
Phillip Gordon

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 856

READ
Sally-Jane

Liberal Democrat 541

SMITH
Brenda

Liberal Democrat  315

WILLIAMS
Tina

Labour Party  577

Turnout: 60.25%

HORDLE WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CARPENTER
Fran

Conservative Party Candidate 1543 ELECTED

LINNEY
Ian Thomas

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 1080

LOVELACE
Penny

Conservative Party Candidate 1810 ELECTED

STOCKS
Pamela Elizabeth

Labour Party 562

Turnout: 73.7%

HYTHE WEST & LANGDOWN WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CLARK
Rebecca

Liberal Democrat 1225

GILLAM
Patricia

Labour Party 503

9Page 17



THORNE
Bev

Conservative Party Candidate 1459 ELECTED

WADE
Alex

Liberal Democrats 1348 ELECTED

WEBB
Tom

The Conservative Party Candidate 1184

Turnout: 69.28%

LYMINGTON TOWN WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
ENGLAND
Jacqui

Independent 1343

LE PORT
Gary

Labour Party 472

PENSON
Alan Keith

Conservative Party Candidate 1439 ELECTED

ROSTAND
Anna Michelle

Conservative Party Candidate 1785 ELECTED

WOODFORD
Mike

Independent  934

Turnout: 69.7%

LYNDHURST WARD (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BURDEN
Ged

The Green Party 373

FAWKES
Philip Francis

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 326

WYETH
Pat

The Conservative Party Candidate 1079 ELECTED

Turnout: 72.19%

MARCHWOOD WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BENNISON
Sue

The Conservative Party Candidate 1232 ELECTED

BOVEY
Jane

Liberal Democrats 771

10Page 18



BOVEY
Martin

Liberal Democrats 628

EVANS
Bill

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 673

HOARE
Alison Jane

The Conservative Party Candidate 1488 ELECTED  

SWALES
Roy

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 491

Turnout: 66.16%

MILFORD WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BEETON
Sophie Victoria

Conservative Party Candidate 2282 ELECTED

COAKES
Amy

Labour Party 582

KENDAL
Mel

Conservative Party Candidate 2232 ELECTED

Turnout: 73.8%

MILTON WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BAKER
Judith Mary

Liberal Democrats 770

CLARKE
Steve

Conservative Party Candidate 1635 ELECTED

DAVIES
Stephen Paul

Conservative Party Candidate 1727 ELECTED

HEXTER
Caroline Ruth

Labour Party 715

Turnout: 61.6%

11Page 19



PENNINGTON WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
DAVIES
Jack

Liberal Democrats 832

HUMPHREYS
Margaret Ellen

Labour Party 552

JACKMAN
Penny

Conservative Party Candidate 1413 ELECTED

MCGEORGE
Nicholas

Liberal Democrats 586

WHITE
Michael Lindsay

Conservative Party Candidate 1505 ELECTED

Turnout: 63%

RINGWOOD EAST & SOPLEY WARD  (1 seat)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
LANE
Emma Louise

Conservative Party Candidate Elected - 
uncontested

  

RINGWOOD NORTH WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
FORD
Christine

Conservative Party Candidate 1801 ELECTED

KELLEHER
Peter Gerard

Labour Party 1445

MILLS
Roz

UK Independence Party (UK IP) 868

ROWE
Timothy Albert James

The Green Party 720

THIERRY
Michael Hamilton

Conservative Party Candidate 1706 ELECTED

Turnout: 69.4%

12Page 20



RINGWOOD SOUTH WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
HERON
Jeremy David

Conservative Party Candidate 1639 ELECTED

KONCZAK
Julian Adam

The Green Party 988

RIPPON-SWAINE
Steve

Conservative Party Candidate 1680 ELECTED

WILLIAMS
Desmond Richard

Labour Party 791

Turnout: 64%

TOTTON CENTRAL WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
CERASOLI
Louise

The Conservative Party Candidate 1461 ELECTED

GOODFELLOW
Alan

The Labour Party Candidate 621

LUCAS
Brian Dennis

The Conservative Party Candidate 1126 ELECTED

O`DRISCOLL
Callum Sebastian

The Green Party 464

ORCHARD
Frances May

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 598

SCRIVENS
Ron

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 581

Turnout: 67.38%

TOTTON EAST WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BRUNSDON
Alex

Liberal Democrats 632

COOMBES
Ian Charles

The Conservative Party Candidate 1155 ELECTED

DAVIS
Arthur Henry George

The Conservative Party Candidate 1018 ELECTED

FIELD
Helen Mary

The Green Party 273

MENHENNET
Bob

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 691

MORAN
David John

Labour Party 399

13Page 21



ROGERS
Bill

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 720

SHAW
Jacquie

Liberal Democrats 533

TIDBURY
Joanna Patricia

Green Party Candidate 229

WALKER
Jean Dianne

Trade Unionist and Socialist Coalition 40

Turnout: 64.98%

TOTTON NORTH WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BRITTON
Dean Antony

The Conservative Party Candidate 1291 ELECTED

GRIST
Martin Anthony

Labour Party 470

MARTIN
Julie Lorraine

Liberal Democrats 492

MOLYNEUX
Ian Ross

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 638

MOLYNEUX
Mel

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 590

PENMAN
Neville

The Conservative Party Candidate 1099 ELECTED

PRATT
Diane Patricia

Liberal Democrats 440

Turnout: 61.42%

TOTTON SOUTH WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BARRETT
Graham Charles

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 536

CHELL
Elizabeth

Labour Party 304

HARRIS
Len

The Conservative Party Candidate 979 ELECTED

HARRISON
David

Liberal Democrats 1348 ELECTED

LEGG
Donna-Marie

UK Independence Party 485

RACKHAM
Caroline Louise

Liberal Democrats 603

14Page 22



SOUTHGATE
Michael

The Conservative Party Candidate  829

WEEKS
Alan

The Green Party 262

WEEKS
Lorella Estelle

The Green Party 178

Turnout: 66.91%

TOTTON WEST WARD (2 seats)
Name of Candidate Description (if any) Votes Cast
BROOKS
Di

The Conservative Party Candidate 1322 ELECTED

DANCE
Peter Francis John

Labour Party 566

LAGDON
Chris

UK Independence Party (UKIP) 715

RUSSELL
David John

The Conservative Party Candidate 1031 ELECTED

Turnout: 63.31%

Average Turnout: 68.15%
 

15Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes (Paper A)
	8 Report of the Returning Officer (Report B)

